JAN 12 2015

COURT OF APPEALS DIVISION III STATE OF WASHINGTON By

NO. 326551-III

COURT OF APPEALS DIVISION III OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

MARISA WUNDERLICH and JOSEPH WONDERLICH, a married couple

Respondents

v.

JOHN P. ROUSE and KARMA ROUSE, a married couple, and THORPE-ABBOTT PROPERTIES LLC,

Appellants

BRIEF OF APPELLANTS

ERIC K. NAYES, WSBA NO. 2709 The Nayes Law Firm, P.S. Fernwell Building, Suite 500 505 West Riverside Avenue Spokane, WA 99201-0518 (509) 252-5072

Attorney for Appellants

A. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

Assignment of Error No. 1

The Superior Court of Spokane County, State of Washington, erred on February 14, 2014, in Cause No. 13-0-203767-4, when entering its "Order" compelling Mr. Rouse to answer certain questions, over his counsel's objection, in the course of a subsequent second deposition. [CP 52].

Assignment of Error No. 2

The Superior Court of Spokane County, State of Washington, erred on May 30, 2014, in Cause No. 13-0-203767-4, when entering its "Order for Sanctions Against Mr. Nayes," wherein the Court imposed monetary sanctions against defendants' and appellants' counsel, Eric K. Nayes, without factual or legal grounds whatsoever to support and warrant the same. [CP 126-130].

Assignment of Error No. 3

The Superior Court of Spokane County, State of Washington, erred on May 30, 2014, in Cause No. 13-0-203767-4, when entering its "Order for Sanctions Against Mr. Nayes" wherein the Court, in

its written "Findings," erroneously stated in Finding No. 1:

Mr. Nayes's actions in responding to the first set of interrogatories and requests from production, both in only serving objections and in the later requirements placed upon Mr. Nayes's participation in CR 26(i)conference have violated CR 26(g).

[CP 127].

Assignment of Error No. 4

The Superior Court of Spokane County, State of Washington, erred on May 30, 2014, in Cause No. 13-0-203767-4, when entering its "Order for Sanctions Against Mr. Nayes" wherein the Court, in its written "Findings," erroneously stated in Finding No. 2:

Mr. Nayes's actions in the deposition of Mr. Rouse violated the rules of CR 30(h) and necessitated a motion to compel the second deposition of Mr. Rouse;

[CP 127].

Assignment of Error No. 5

The Superior Court of Spokane County, State of Washington, erred on May 30, 2014, in Cause No. 13-0-203767-4, when entering its "Order for Sanctions Against Mr. Nayes" wherein the Court, in

its written "Findings," erroneously stated in Finding No. 3:

The proper sanction in this matter, considering the least severe sanctions necessary to accomplish the purpose of the sanctions, is to award the Plaintiffs the cost that the discovery violations have caused to them.

[CP 127].

Assignment of Error No. 6

The Superior Court of Spokane County, State of Washington, erred on May 30, 2014, in Cause No. 13-0-203767-4, when entering its "Order for Sanctions Against Mr. Nayes" wherein the Court, in its written "Findings," erroneously stated in Finding No. 4:

Mr. Nayes violation of CR 26(g) increased the discovery costs by making Plaintiffs' counsel research 20 pages of objections for two hours, and participate in a CR 26(i) conference, on the record for two and a half hours. It also required the Plaintiffs to pay for the cost of ordering the record for the CR 26(i)conference.

[CP 127].

Assignment of Error No. 7

The Superior Court of Spokane County, State of Washington, erred on May 30, 2014, in Cause No. 13-0-203767-4, when entering its "Order for

Sanctions Against Mr. Nayes" wherein the Court, in its written "Findings," erroneously stated in Finding No. 5:

Time the Plaintiffs spent dealing with the CR 26(g) violations was a reasonable amount of time, and the hourly rate of \$225 per hour for attorney time is a reasonable hourly rate. The court finds the cost of \$1,012.50 to be a reasonable cost in this matter.

[CP 127].

Assignment of Error No. 8

The Superior Court of Spokane County, State of Washington, erred on May 30, 2014, in Cause No. 13-0-203767-4, when entering its "Order for Sanctions Against Mr. Nayes" wherein the Court, in its written "Findings," erroneously stated in Finding No. 6:

Time the Plaintiffs spent dealing with the CR 30(h) violations and doing a motion to compel under CR 37 was a reasonable amount of time, and the hourly rate of \$225 per hour for attorney time is a reasonable hourly rate. The court finds the cost of \$225 to be a reasonable cost in this matter.

[CP 127-28].

Assignment of Error No. 9

The Superior Court of Spokane County, State of Washington, erred on May 30, 2014, in Cause No.

13-0-203767-4, when entering its "Order for Sanctions Against Mr. Nayes" wherein the Court, in its written "Findings," erroneously stated in Finding No. 7:

The cost of ordering the transcript for the CR 26(i) conference is also found to be related to the CR 26(g) violations, and is in the amount of \$388.80.

[CP 128].

Assignment of Error No. 10

The Superior Court of Spokane County, State of Washington, erred on May 30, 2014, in Cause No. 13-0-203767-4, when entering its "Order for Sanctions Against Mr. Nayes" wherein the Court, in its written "Findings," erroneously stated in Finding No. 8:

The cost of the appearance fee for a second deposition Of Mr. Rouse is related to the motion to compel under CR 37 and proper to be reimbursed to the Plaintiffs in as part of the motion to compel, and is in the amount of \$50.00.

[CP 128].

Assignment of Error No. 11

The Superior Court of Spokane County, State of Washington, erred on May 30, 2014, in Cause No. 13-0-203767-4, when entering its "Order for

Sanctions Against Mr. Nayes" wherein the Court, in its written "Order" erroneously stated:

It is hereby ordered, adjudged and decreed that Mr. Nayes shall pay to the Plaintiffs CR 26(g) sanctions of \$1,401.30, and CR 37 sanctions of \$275.00. Such payment shall be made to M Casey Law IOLTA and to be issued within 30 days of this order.

[CP 128].

Assignment of Error No. 12

The Superior Court of Spokane County, State of Washington, erred on July 15, 2014, in Cause No. 13-0-203767-4, in entering its "Order on Reconsideration" denying the motion of defendants and appellants.

[CP 286-287].

B. ISSUES PERTAINING TO ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR Issue No. 1

Whether, contrary to the erroneous determination of the superior court, the attorney for defendants and appellants, Eric K. Nayes, properly objected and instructed his client and the deponent, John Rouse, not to answer a question during his deposition whether his aunt, Ellen

Heinemann has demonstrated an inability to adequate provide nutrition for herself, insofar as (a) said question is in derogation of CR 30(h)(1) wherein examining counsel is required to refrain from asking questions he knows to be beyond the legitimate scope of discovery, and (b) said question, under the mandate of CR 26(b)(1), was entirely irrelevant to the subject matter involved in the action pertaining to adverse possession and did not relate to any claim or defense of any party? [Assignments of Error Nos. 1, 2, 4, 5, 8, 10 and 11].

Issue No. 2

Whether, contrary to the erroneous determination of the superior court, the attorney for defendants and appellants, Eric K. Nayes, properly objected and instructed his client and the deponent, John Rouse, not to answer an argumentative and hypothetical question for which no facts exist as foundation for said question insofar as (a) said question is in derogation of CR 30(h)(1) wherein examining counsel is required to refrain from asking questions he knows to be

beyond the legitimate scope of discovery, (b) said question, under the mandate of CR 26(b)(1), was entirely irrelevant to the subject matter involved in the action pertaining to adverse possession and did not relate to any claim or defense of any party and (c) said question was simply framed in order to mislead and with the intent of generating an inaccurate and false answer and to confuse the witness? [Assignments of Error Nos. 1, 2, 4, 5, 8, 10 and 11].

Issue No. 3

Whether, contrary to the erroneous determination of the superior court, the objections framed by the attorney for defendants and appellants, Eric K. Nayes, to Plaintiffs' First Set of Interrogatories Propounded to Defendants, dated March 24, 2014, did not violate or contravene the considerations in CR 26(g) regarding his certification of the defendants and appellants' objections and responses to said discovery requests? [Assignments of Error Nos. 3, 5, 6, 7, 9 and 11].

Issue No. 4

Whether, contrary to the erroneous determination of the superior court, the objections framed by the attorney for defendants and appellants, Eric K. Nayes, to Plaintiffs' First Set of Requests for Production Propounded to Defendants, dated March 24, 2014, did not violate or contravene the considerations in CR 26(g) regarding his certification of the defendants' objections and responses to said discovery requests? [Assignments of Error Nos. 3, 5, 6, 7, 9 and 11].

Issue No. 5

Whether, contrary to the erroneous determination of the superior court, the request by the attorney for defendants, Eric K. Nayes, to have a CR 26(i) conference recorded by a court reporter, at the sole expense of defendants, did not violate CR 26(g)? [Assignments of Error Nos. 3, 5, 6, 7, 9 and 11].

Issue No. 6

Whether the superior court, in light of the numerous failures of said court in either ignoring

or improperly applying the governing court rules and applicable law, erred in denying the motion of defendants for reconsideration under CR 59(a)? [
Assignments of Error Nos. 1 through 11].

C. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The primary subject matter of this action entailed a claim of adverse possession raised by plaintiffs to land owned by defendant, Thorpe-Abbott Properties, LLC. [CP 288-293]. During the course of discovery, plaintiffs took the deposition of defendant, John Rouse, on January 3, 2014. [CP 14] In this deposition, the attorney for plaintiff, Marshall Casey, posed two questions to John Rouse, to which the undersigned counsel for Mr. Rouse, Eric K. Nayes, objected and instructed his client, the deponent, not to answer.

The first question was:

- Q. Does she (Ellen Heinemann) have a demonstrated inability to adequately provide nutrition for herself?
- MR. NAYES: I object to this line of questioning. I don't see the relevance whatsoever to an adverse possession suit as to what he (John Rouse) thinks about

his aunt's ability to take care of herself.

Notwithstanding this objection, Marshall Casey, attorney for plaintiff, offered nothing whatsoever to explain the relevancy of this question or the propriety of this line of inquiry. [CP 16-17].

The second question was:

- 0. If the Complaint had said they put cattle on the property versus grazed --
- (John Rouse) When you say they, Α. specifically who do you mean?
- The plaintiffs or their predecessors. Q.
- Okay. Plaintiffs --Α.
- MR. NAYES: There's no foundation for this line of questioning, Mr. Casey. I mean, you are asking purely hypotheticals that haven't happened at all.

- MR. CASEY: Are you going to instruct him not to answer?
- MR. NAYES: Yes. Just don't answer any more of these hypothetical questions

[CP 18-19].

Thereafter, the attorneys for the parties held a conference pursuant to Rule 26(i) of the Civil Rules for Superior Court [CR 26(i)] on January 28, 2014, which focused on the foregoing questions and the undersigned's continuing objections regarding the same. No resolution of the objections was reached between counsel. [CP 41].

The superior court entered its "Order" dated February 14, 2014, finding that the foregoing questions "were correct" and that no basis for an instruction not to answer existed. The imposition of sanctions was reserved "for another time." [CP 52].

In addition to the controversy surrounding the two questions in the foregoing deposition, a single document entitled "Plaintiffs' First Set of Interrogatories and Requests for Production Propounded to Defendant John Rouse, Karma Rouse and Thorpe-Abbott Properties, LLC," dated February 21, 2014 [See, Nayes Declaration in Support of Motion for Reconsideration (hereinafter referred to "Nayes Declaration"), Exhibit "A"][CP 141-158], purportedly propounded jointly to defendants and appellants thirteen (13) statements denominated as an "interrogatory" and seven (7) statements denominated as a "request for production." This single document was served on the office of Eric

K. Nayes, the attorney for the foregoing named defendants and appellants, on February 21, 2014.
[Nayes Declaration, Exhibit "A"][CP 141].

Additionally, "Plaintiffs' First Set of Interrogatories and Requests for Production Propounded to Defendant John Rouse, Karma Rouse and Thorpe-Abbott Properties, LLC" ("hereinafter sometimes "Plaintiffs' First Set") [Nayes Declaration, Exhibit "A" [CP 141-158] provided, on average, less than three (3) inches of space for each of the three defendants and appellants to provide any answer or response to the statements denominated as an "interrogatory" or any statements denominated as a "request for production." Further, said single document specified no time, place or manner of any inspection and the performing of any related acts concerning any statement denominated as a "request for production." [CP 141-144; 151-158]. the foregoing legal deficiencies clearly apparent on the face of "Plaintiffs' First Set" and noted above, the thirteen (13) statements denominated as an "interrogatory" and the seven (7) statements

denominated as a "request for production" were also objectionable for other reasons identified below.

Because of these numerous and glaring deficiencies associated with "Plaintiffs' First Set," the undersigned, as attorney for defendants and appellants, John P. Rouse, Karma Rouse, and Thorpe-Abbott Properties, LLC, prepared a document entitled "Objections of Defendants, John P. Rouse, Karma Rouse, and Thorpe-Abbott Properties, LLC, to Plaintiffs' First Set of Interrogatories Propounded to Defendants," dated March 24, 2014

[See, Nayes Declaration, Exhibit "B"][CP 160-167], and timely served the same on the office of Marshall Casey, attorney for the respondents, Marisa Wunderlich and Joseph Wunderlich, the same day. [CP 137].

Additionally, the undersigned prepared a document entitled "Response of Defendants, John P. Rouse, Karma Rouse, and Thorpe-Abbott Properties, LLC, to Plaintiffs' First Set of Requests for Production Propounded to Defendants," dated March 24, 2014 [See, Nayes Declaration, Exhibit "C"][CP

169-180], and likewise timely served the same on the office of Marshall Casey, attorney for plaintiffs, on the same day, that is, March 24, 2014. [CP 137]. The "Objections, Etc." [Nayes Declaration, Exhibit "B"][CP 160-167] of appellants and the "Response" [Nayes Declaration, Exhibit "C"][CP 169-180] of appellants challenged the validity of "Plaintiffs' First Set" [Nayes Declaration, Exhibit "A"][CP 141-158], as well as the statements denominated as interrogatories and the statements denominated as a requests for production, which were also in themselves not well-founded for many reasons.

On March 24, 2014, Marshall Casey, sent a letter to the undersigned, which letter requested a CR 26(i) conference regarding the "Objections of Defendants, Etc." and the "Response of Defendants, Etc." [Nayes Declaration, Exhibit "D"][CP 182]. The undersigned replied to said letter on March 25, 2014. [Nayes Declaration, Exhibit "E"][CP 184-186]. This letter asked that the CR 26(i) conference be recorded by a certified court reporter. The precise reason and justification

for requesting that the CR 26(i) conference be recorded was to prevent Marshall Casey, attorney for plaintiffs, from embellishing and falsifying the nature and substance of statements made by the undersigned or otherwise maligning and defaming the undersigned or his clients. [See, Nayes Declaration, p. 3, 11 16-19][CP 138]. Mr. Casey sent a further letter dated March 26, 2014. [Nayes Declaration, Exhibit "F"][CP 188].

A CR 26(i) conference was held at the offices of Marshall Casey, attorney for respondents, for his convenience, on Monday, March 31, 2014, commencing at 1:30 p.m. [CP 58]. The conference was recorded by Dorothy Stiles, RMR, CRR. [CP 58-88]. Thereafter, by a "Motion and Memorandum for Sanctions Against Mr. Nayes and the Defendants," dated May 2, 2014, and filed herein on May 2, 2014 [CP 91-103], respondents, by and through their attorney Marshall Casey, moved for sanctions against the undersigned and his clients regarding the "Objections of Defendants, John P. Rouse, Karma Rouse, and Thorpe-Abbott Properties, LLC, to Plaintiffs' First Set of Interrogatories

Propounded to Defendants," dated March 24, 2014
[Nayes Declaration, Exhibit "B"][CP 160-167], and
the "Response of Defendants, John P. Rouse, Karma
Rouse, and Thorpe-Abbott Properties, LLC, to
Plaintiffs' First Set of Requests for Production
Propounded to Defendants," dated March 24, 2014
[Nayes Declaration, Exhibit "C"][CP 169-180].

The alleged grounds of the "Motion, Etc." were that said "Objections, Etc." and said "Response" violated CR 26(g). [CP 94-97]. In opposition to said "Motion, Etc.", appellants filed and served a "Memorandum of Points and Authorities of Defendants in Answer to Plaintiffs' Motion for Sanctions." [CP 109-123].

After a hearing on said "Motion and Memorandum for Sanctions Against Mr. Nayes and the Defendants," of respondents, the Court entered its "Order for Sanctions Against Mr. Nayes" on May 30, 2014. [CP 126-130].

Defendants, and their attorney, Eric K.

Nayes, timely filed a Motion for Reconsideration
of Order for Sanctions, under CR 59(a), on June 9,

2014. [CP 133-135]. Said motion was denied by the

superior court on July 15, 2014. [CP 286-287]. This appeal followed. [CP 277-287].

D. STANDARD OF REVIEW

Issues involving questions of law are reviewed <u>de novo</u> on appeal. See, <u>State v.</u> Horrace, 144 Wn.2d 386, 392, 28 P.3d 753 (2001). In turn, review of an issue associated with the exercise of discretion by the trial court is governed by the standard of manifest abuse of discretion. State v. Boirgeouis, 133 Wn.2d 389, 406, 945 P.2d 1120 (1997). The trial court will be deemed to have abused its discretion when the court acted on untenable grounds, untenable reasons, or has erroneously interpreted, misapplied, or chosen to ignore the governing law. Gordon v. Gordon, 44 Wn.2d 222, 226-27, 266 P.2d 786 (1954); State v. Robinson, 79 Wn.App. 386, 902 P.2d 652 (1995); <u>In re Marr. of Tang</u>, 57 Wn.App. 648, 654, 789 P.2d 118 (1989). In other words, a factual determination which is followed by a misapplication of the law constitutes an abuse of discretion warranting reversal on appeal. See, In <u>re Marr. of Spreen</u>, 107 Wn.App. 341, 346, 28 P.3d 769 (2001).

E. ARGUMENT

Issues No. 1 and No. 2 Pertaining to Deposition of John Rouse

In connection with the foregoing controversies concerning the deposition of John Rouse, plaintiffs' took the unwavering position that said lay deponent was obligated to answer any and all questions asked by counsel for plaintiffs, regardless of their relevancy, or even though the questions were strictly argumentative and hypothetical in nature.

However, contrary to their stated position, there are clearly limits on the scope of discovery and questions which may be asked of a deponent. Specifically, in this regard, CR 26(b)(1) provides:

- (b) Discovery Scope and Limits. Unless otherwise limited by order of the court in accordance with these rules, the scope of discovery is as follows:
- (1) <u>In General</u>. Parties may obtain discovery regarding any matter, not privileged, which is relevant to the subject matter involved in the pending

action, whether it relates to the claim or defense of the party seeking discovery or to the claim or defense of any other party, including the existence, description, nature, custody, condition and location of any books, documents, or other tangible things and the identity and location of persons having knowledge of any discoverable matter.

[Emphasis added].

By the same measure, CR 30(h)(1) provides:

- (h) Conduct of Depositions. The following shall govern deposition practice:
- (1) Conduct of Examining Counsel.
 Examining counsel will refrain from asking questions he or she knows to be beyond the legitimate scope of discovery

[Emphasis added].

In addition to the foregoing limitations placed on discovery as set forth in CR 26(b)(1) and CR 30(h)(1), the governing law pertaining to Issue No. 1 and Issue No. 2 in this appeal set forth above, dictates that said questions are patently objectionable, not a legitimate subject of discovery, and simply need not be answered by the deponent.

1. Third Party's Ability to Provide Adequate Nutrition for Herself is Not Relevant [Issue No. 1].

The first question posed by plaintiffs' attorney during the deposition of Mr. Rouse concerns whether Ellen Heinemann (a third party) had demonstrated an inability to adequately provide nutrition for herself. [CP 16-17]. For purposes of CR 26(b)(1), this question has absolutely no relevancy or bearing whatsoever to the subject matter of this action, which is an suit for adverse possession. [CP 288-293].

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