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

IV. Argument 

This is an appeal of two sanctions, one under CR 37, and the other 

under CR 26(g). Appellant has reargued the entire proceedings as if they 

have done a protective order, or a response to a motion to compel. That is 

not the issue here since the Appellants never did a motion for a protective 

order, and the court's order to compel the answers to questions in the 

deposition was not appealed. As shown by both the order that is 

appealed, and the motion for reconsideration, the sole issues are (B)2 the 

CR 37 sanctions for how Mr. Nayes behaved in the deposition of the 

Defendant Mr. Rouse, and (C) CR 26(g) sanctions for Mr. Nayes failure to 

conduct discovery under that rule, and (D) whether the amount of 

sanctions was appropriate. This brief will address solely those issues, 

since they were the only items ruled upon by the court. 

2 A is the standard of review so that is left out. 
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I 

A. Standard of Review 

Abuse of discretion is the standard of review when reviewing an 

order for sanctions. Physicians Ins. Exch. v. Fisons Corp., 122 Wn.2d 

299, 338 (1993). Appellants have represented to this court that the 

standard of care is de novo for legal issues and abuse of discretion for 

factual issues. That is incorrect; the Fisons court specifically rejected the 

request to review sanctions de novo. Id. The abuse of discretion standard 

recognizes that deference is owed to the judicial actor who is better 

positioned than another to decide the issue in question. Id. at 39. Fisons 

analyzed both decisions under CR 26(g) and CR 37, noting that they were 

under the abuse ofdiscretion standard and that was the proper standard for 

all discovery sanctions. Id. 

A trial court abuses its discretion when its order is manifestly 

unreasonable or based on untenable grounds. Id. A trial court would 

abuse its discretion if it based its ruling on an erroneous view of the law, 

or if it is based upon insufficient evidence. Id. 

B. CR 37 sanctions are appropriate- Issues 1 and 2 

A spirit of cooperation and forthrightness during the discovery 

process is mandatory for our trial process. Fisons, 91 122 Wn.2d at 342. 

CR 37 is the enforcement section for the discovery process and authorizes 

sanctions for failure to comply with a discovery order or failure to respond 
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to a discovery request or to appear at a deposition. Johnson v. Mermis, 91 

Wn. App. 127,132-133 (1998). Sanctions are permitted for unjustified or 

unexplained resistance to discovery and serve the purposes of deterring, 

punishing, compensating and educating a party or its attorney engaging in 

the discovery abuses. ld. at 133. Mr. Nayes violated two portions of the 

civil rules in the deposition, (1) he improperly instructed the witness not to 

answer, and (2) he argued, coached, and testified for the witness. 

1. Mr. Nayes improperly instructed his client not 

answer questions 

A party is not allowed to unilaterally set the limits of discovery nor 

can they unilaterally limit the scope of the deposition. Id. at 134. Rather a 

party should seek court intervention if they wish to limit discovery. Id., 

CR 26(c), CR 30(d). CR 30(h)(4) requires counsel to instruct a witness to 

answer all questions without evasion to the extent of their testimonial 

knowledge, unless properly instructed not to do so. ld. The only proper 

instructions not to answer are either based upon privilege or pursuant to a 

CR 30(d) motion to terminate or limit the examination. CR 30(h)(3). ld. 

In this matter, much like in Johnson, Mr. N ayes unilaterally 

decided the relevancy of the question on Mrs. Heinemanns ability to care 

for herself. While Mr. Nayes now argues that there was no proffer of 

proof on its relevancy under CR 26(b)(1), that is not the standard of our 
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discovery rules. The burden is upon the party resisting the discovery to 

bring a protective order, and in particular the rules in a deposition require 

either a privilege, which was not shown here, or the bringing of a 

protective order under CR 30(d). The party seeking discovery has no duty 

to provide its strategy or basis, but rather the duty is upon the party 

opposing discovery. 

Discovery in Washington is a constitutional right that springs from 

the access to our courts. Putman v. Wenatchee Med. Ctr., 166 Wn.2d 974, 

979 (2009). "It is common legal knowledge that extensive discovery is 

necessary to effectively pursue either a plaintiff's claim or a defendant's 

defense." Id. quoting John Doe v. Puget Sound Blood Ctr., 117 Wn.2d 

772, 782 (1991). 

Despite these principals the Appellants quote In re Personal 

Restraint o/Gentry, 137 Wn.2d 378, 394 (1999) for the statement that the 

court "will not condone, and will not suffer, what amounts to a fishing 

expedition." Appellant brief p. 22. However, what the Appellants do not 

tell this court is that the Gentry court was looking at a post-conviction 

discovery request under a personal restraint petition. Gentry, 137 Wn.2d 

at 390-394. In particular the Gentry court noted that "prisoners seeking 

post-conviction [sic] relief are not entitled to discovery as a matter of 

ordinary course, but are limited to discovery only to the extent the prisoner 
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can show good cause to believe the discovery would prove entitlement to 

relief." [d. at 390-391. It was within that context that the Gentry court 

stated they would not grant a "fishing expedition." Jd. at 394. In direct 

contrast Putman, and CR 26(b)( 1) allow broad discovery in civil matters 

as a constitutional right. The Respondents believe their questions were 

well within the scope of CR 26(b)(l) relevancy, and to compare them to 

the standard of Gentry is misleading. 

a. Questions on Mrs. Heinemann's capacity were allowed 

Assuming though that the Appellant is correct that there must be 

some showing of relevance based solely upon his unilateral demand 

during a deposition, the infonnation sought was clearly relevant and 

within the scope of CR 26(b)(1) as likely to lead to relevant evidence. 

Broad discovery is pennitted under CR 26. Magana v. Hyundai Motor 

Am., 167 Wn.2d 570, 584 (2009). CR 26(b)(l) allows for questions 

around infonnation sought that appears reasonably calculated to lead to 

the discovery of admissible evidence. Jd. Here the infonnation sought in 

regards to the incapacity of Mrs. Heinemann went directly to whether or 

not Mr. Nayes's client had infonnation or testimony to impeach her 

memory. 

The credibility of a witness is very relevant to the trial of facts and 

issues. ER 607- 613 all speak to impeachment of a witness. Along with 
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those rules Washington's pattern jury instructions tell the fact finder that 

they are the sole judge of a witness's testimony, and that they should 

consider among other things, "the opportunity of the witness to observe or 

know the things they testify about; the ability of the witness to observe 

accurately; the quality of a witness's memory while testifying; and the 

manner of the witness while testifying ...." 6 Wash. Prac., Wash. Pattern 

Jury lnstr. Civ. WPI 1.02 (6th ed.). 

In considering the likelihood of the question to lead to reasonable 

evidence it bears reflecting that Mr. Rouse, the deponent, had (1) put in 

front of the court a declaration stating he gave Mrs. Heinemann 

permission to use the land, and (2) that he had started a collateral action to 

have Mrs. Heinemann declared incapacitated and a guardian appointed. 

Mr. Rouse's allegations of incapacity and any basis he had for those 

allegations go directly to the credibility of Mrs. Heinemann, and the 

impeachability of any testimony Mrs. Heinemann could give to counter 

Mr. Rouse's declaration. Add to that the facts that Mr. Rouse claimed in 

the incapacity proceedings that the Plaintiff, Marisa Wunderlich, was 

abusing Mrs. Heinemann; the timing of the filing being after this suit 

started; and the claims of the transfer of land from Mrs. Heinemann to 

Mrs. Wunderlich as invalid and it now moves from likely to lead to 

relevant evidence, to evidence directly relevant to the claims to the claims 

RESPONDENTS' BRIEF- 21 



of a predecessor in interest, as alleged in the Respondent's complaint. 

These facts, along with the lack of a motion for a protective order, 

support the findings of the trial court that Mr. Nayes violated CR 30(h) in 

his instructions not to answer. 

b. Questions on the Appellant's answer were allowed 

CR 8(b) lays out that in an answer a party may deny all or portions 

of the complaint. CR 11(a)(4) states that by signing the denial a party 

must confirm that "the denials of factual contentions are warranted on the 

evidence..." CR 26(b)(1) allows discovery questions that are broad in 

scope to get to any discoverable evidence. 

To support their objection the Appellant uses Glazier v. Adams, 64 

Wn.2d 144 (1964). In Adams, the trial court limited the cross examination 

of a witness in front of a jury based upon counsel "attempting to degrade, 

humiliate or disgrace the witness in order to discredit him and to create 

prejudice against him in the eyes of the jury." ld. at 149. First it bears 

mention that discovery questions are different than trial because of the 

difference between ER 402 relevancy versus the broad discovery allowed 

in CR 26(b)(1). Plus there is the question of protecting the jury from 

undue or substantial prejudice in trial under ER 403, which does not arise 

in a deposition. Probably more compelling though is CR 11(a)(4)'s 

requirement of factual support for a denial that makes asking the 
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defendant about the answer critical during discovery. 

In this matter the deponent initially denied that crops had been 

raised on the land or cattle grazed on the land. During the deposition it 

was clear that the deponent had seen hay on the land and cattle on the 

land. The reasons for the denial appeared to be verbiage of the use of the 

word "crops" and "grazed." The questions are clear that Respondent's 

counsel was exploring these differences between testimony and pleadings, 

which is perfectly proper in discovery and likely in trial as well. Mr. 

Nayes was not allowed to make himself the sole judge of the propriety of 

the questions, but rather had a duty under CR 30(h) to either tell his client 

to answer the question, assert a privilege, or move the court to limit the 

deposition. Johnson, 91 Wn. App. at 127. This supports the courts 

finding of an improper statement to the deponent not to respond. 

2. The court's finding of CR 30(h) violations is also 

supported 

CR 30(h)(2) states "[a]ll objections shall be concise and must not 

suggest or coach answers from the deponent. Argumentative interruptions 

by counsel shall not be permitted." The court found a violation of this rule 

based upon the transcript of the deposition in front of them. Consider the 

following as the evidence upon which the violation was found: 

Q. If the Complaint had said they put cattle on the property versus 
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grazed-

A. When you say they, specifically who do you mean? 

Q. The plaintiffs or their predecessors. 

Mr. Nayes: There's no foundation for this line of 

questions, Mr. Casey. I mean, you're asking purely hypotheticals that 

haven't happened at all. 

The other thing is that I draft this Answer based upon facts that 

you won't have anything to do with. Number one is your client doesn't 

own any real property. 

And so when I drafted it, I drafted it based upon actual facts, not 

supposed facts. 

Now if you want to ask him ifhe thinks his attorney tells the truth 

or doesn't tell the truth, go ahead. 

He did not draft this Answer. I drafted this Answer. And I drafted 

it based on actual facts, not supposed facts. 

And I based it on the actual fact that your client does not own any 

property. So that, therefore, your client has no predecessor. So that, 

therefore neither your client nor any predecessor can claim they raised any 

property on this any crops on any property owned by Thorpe-Abbott. 

They own no property. 

Mr. Casey: Are you going to instruct him not to answer? 
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Mr. Nayes: Yes. 

Just don't answer any more of these hypothetical questions. 

Mr. Casey: Lets mark the record there. 

Q. (By Mr. Casey) I'm trying to find out what you're denying. Are you 

denying then that they grazed their cattle? 

Mr. Nayes: I wrote this Answer. He did not write this Answer. 

Okay? 

I am denying. He is not denying. For crying out loud. 

Mr. Casey: And I understand that. You're acting on his behalf. 

I'm trying to explore the contentions that have been made here. 

Mr. Nayes: And I told you what the contentions are. 

Mr. Casey: I hear your contentions. I'm trying to explore the 

factual contentions in these, which is -

The Witness: You haven't explored any facts in this case today. 

Mr. Casey: Well, I'm sorry you feel that way. I'm not going to 

tum this into an argument. 

Mr. Nayes: It's not an argument. 

Mr. Casey: I have a right to ask questions. 

Mr. Nayes: I know you have a right to ask questions. 

Mr. Casey: I expect them to be answered unless there's some kind 

of privilege. 
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Mr. Nayes: You know, I've been around the practice of law for 40 

years. 

I'll tell you why: Attorneys draft Answers. Clients don't draft 

Answers. 

Now, if I take your deposition based upon your Complaint, which 

contains not one fact in the world-

I mean, it is ridiculous. 

Now, what do you want to know? Do you want to know what he 

thinks or do you want to know what are facts? And so far it's: What do 

you think? What do you think? 

Mr. Casey: I want to know what his testimony is going to be. 

have asked him a lot of facts. We've talked about that. 

But that's fine. You can deal with that in front of the Court. I'm 

asking here --

Mr. Nayes: No. I get tired ofwasting time, Mr. Casey. 

Mr. Casey: Okay 

Mr. Nayes: That's what I get tiredest about, you know. 

Ask him your question. 

Mr. Casey: Okay. And my question is going to be--

Mr. Nayes: Do you think your attorney lied when he said-

Mr. Casey: No. That's not my question at all. 
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Q. (By Mr. Casey) I'm trying to figure out some of the facts here. 

And I'm trying to figure out if I changed the words, if you would have 

answered in -- if you would agree with them. 

And so I think right now we've established that crops-the 

problem you have with crops is not that there wasn't hay on the land. 

A. I've aIready-

Q. It's that you don't want to call them crops; correct? 

A. I've already answered that there were some hay bales on the 

land when we got ready to build. Okay? 

If you calllO or 15 hay bales a crop, that's not a crop. 

Later in the deposition Mr. Nayes again took significant issue with 

another question: 

Q. And underneath your definition of possession, does that include 

raising hay? 

Mr. Nayes: Again, there's no foundation. 

You have already established that it was leased land. The hay was 

raised. They didn't raise any hay. A trespasser farmer raised some hay. 

And that's what the facts show. It's constant. 

Mr. Casey: Eric, I understand that's your argument. 

Mr. Nayes: No. It's not an argument. It's facts. 

Mr. Casey: Well, I have Declarations to the opposite that I have 
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put in front of this Court. 

Mr. Nayes: I know you did. And I pointed out to you that you 

better check on them before--

Mr. Casey: Its testimony of people who have been willing to 

declare that under the penalty of perjury. That's sufficient evidence. 

Okay? 

The Witness: Wrong 

Mr. Casey: That being said, I do not have to justify my case to 

you. Okay? 

I'm asking you if -

The Witness: You have to justify -

Mr. Casey: I'm asking a question. 

The Witness: You have to justify it to me. 

Mr. Casey: You know what? We're not here arguing about this. 

Are you going to answer my question or not? 

The Witness: Ask one. 

Mr. Nayes: What is the question? You say did the plaintiffs. Did 

he see Marisa out there farming? 

Mr. Casey: No 

Mr. Nayes: Did he see her baling hay? 

Mr. Casey: You know what? We have crossed the boundaries 
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now of you advising your client, and you are now speaking for your client. 

Mr. Nayes: I am not. 

Mr. Casey: I'm going to ask you to limit yourself to the civil rules. 

The Witness: Let him ask his questions, Eric. Just let him ask 

them, because he's got to get a question out. 

Mr. Casey: Would you mind reading the last question I did there. 

CP 24-26 

This is sufficient evidence to find a violation of CR 30(h) and to award 

sanctions under CR 37. 

C. CR 26(g) sanctions were appropriate 

It has been the rule in Washington since 1993 that discovery 

"responses must be consistent with the letter, spirit, and purpose of the 

discovery rules." Fisons Corp., 122 Wn.2d at 344. In determining 

whether or not an attorney has complied with the discovery rule the court 

should consider all the surrounding circumstances, the importance of the 

evidence to its proponent, and the ability of the opposing party to 

formulate a response to comply with the request. Id. at 343. 

The court issued sanctions here based upon two items, first, that it

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